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After the confiscation Fiizér was managed by the Treasury which, if pos-
sible, cared still less about the condition and the custody of the fort. So it
could occur that it was pillaged by villagers of the surroundings in 1673. The
preservation of the stronghold had no sense for the Treasury, nor was it of
any strategic importance for the Court. It wts much rather to be feared that
it might become a basis of an antiHapsburg movement. Thus, in 1676 the
fortress was made unusable by the Imperial soldiery and henceforth the re-
mains fell rapidly into decay. Archeological excavations were started in 1977
under the leadership of Istvdn Feld and Juan Cabello, but could be continued
only in 19925 As a consequence the research work is on numerous points still
in its initial stage and its results are often uncertain. Nevertheless, we have
already enough informations to outline the architectural history of the for-
tress and to give a foretaste of the finds from different ages.®

In the 13th century the form of the fortress was the most simple. The
more or less flat, though cleft surface on the rocky peak (cca 40X70 m) was
surrounded by a stone wall (1,5 m thick, 5—6 m high), the groundplan being
determined by the natural features of the terrain. The building material for
the walls was obtained from the rocks of the mountain. The narrow entrance
to be used only by pedestrians opened at the eastern part of the wall, at the
top of the stairs carved into the rock. The living-house of the first period
stood in the south-western part of the enclosed area. Since only its bipartite
cellar level remained up to now, the actual number of floors is unknown.
According to the inventories of the 17th century there was no tower-like build-
ing here, so it is doubtful, whether we may at all reckon with a tower in
the previous centuries. The cistern is also from the first period. We may also
reckon with wooden houses, though their traces could not be yet identified
by now.

Due to the thick mass of fallen masonry that still covers the ruins, the
exploration could reach but rarely the layers of the 13th century. Most of the
earliest finds consists of current ceramics made of reddish brown or brownish
grey clay on the hand-wheel and decorated with wavy or spirel lines. The
motifs agree with the ceramics classified as belonging to the Arpadian age,
but the characteristic material refers to a local sphere that is not yet suffi-
ciently known.’

As shown by research results obtained so far, the form of the fortress
remained unchanged until the end of the Arpadian age. It is rather difficult
to differenciate and partly to attach to the 14th century a group of ceramics
dissimilar to earlier finds, that consists of finer, though still somewhat rough
pottery fragments made of the same material as the aformentioned. A typical
decorative motif is the parallel ribbing around the shoulders. The vessels be-
longing to this group have already a handle.

The ownership of the Perényis marks a decisive turning-point in the life
of the fortress. The 15th century passed most probably with uninterrupted
building activities. The gatetower to the south of the early gate is perhaps
still a result of the first building period, with a square ground-plan, protruding
from the wall. Unfortunately the original details were almost completely
destroyed by an unfounded reconstruction in the first half of the 20th century.
The doorways are unknown, the tower itself is at least two floors high. The
floors were separated by a timbered ceiling. Traces of fire-place can be found
in the corner of the ground-floor and the first story. When the tower was
built, the former gate has been walled up. The north-eastern side-wing was
equally built in the 15th century. Its remains, bearing the marks of minor
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bakehouse, partly out of Renaissance stones. According to the investories
only a few premises of the fortress were inhabitable state in the 17th century.
The bars were already missing from the chapel windows, and in the chapel
itself chalk or corn was kept by turns. It should be mentioned, that on the
side of the palatial wing towards the court a wooden corridor was running
around. In the premises, made of red and white marble, respectively, as well
as several glazed and unglazed green tile stoves were mentioned in the in-
ventories. Some of these stoves made of tiles mostly decorated with floral
ornamentation could be identified in the course of our investigations.!

Another medieval object should also be mentioned, that was in close
contact with the fortress. To the east of the castle hill, hardly one air kilo-
meter afar, we may find another fort on the summit of a steep mountain of
634m high. The triangular plateau is surrounded by a simple rampart and
a trench, with no traces of any walls or buildings to be detected. The rampart
was built out of the stones thrown out of the trench. In addition to two neo-
lithic vessel fragments, the finds included just a few medieval pottery, which
consists of two strikingly different parts: a roughly manufactured group,
apparently of the 13th century, and a finer one, to be defined as belonging to
the 15th century. After all we know about the history of Fiizér, it is clear
that the territory where this fortification is standing, belonged from the very
beginnings to the domain of Fiizér and thus no other proprietor can ever be
taken into consideration than that of Fiizér. The peak is almost inaccessibie
and the descent is also the most difficult, so it cannot have functioned as a
siege-fortress either. However, there is an excellent outlook from the peak
even on areas that cannot be sighted from the fortress of Fiizér. So the object
is possibly nothing else than fortified observation post, used causally in
turbulent times by the defenders of the fortress in order to keep an eye on
more distant surroundings. The casual use would explain the missing traces of
solid buildings as well as the different ages of the find. Another detail con-
firming this theory: up to now the peak is surnamed by the villagers “Orhe-
gy”, i.e. Watch-hill.’2

Annotations

1 A detailed treatment of the problem can be found in the volume Castrum Bene
1989. Vérak a 13. szdzadban. A magyar véarépités fénykora (Fort in the 13th
century. The golden age of fortificat.ons in Hungary), Gydngyds, 1990. (Ed.: L&szl6
Horvath), with special regard to the introductory paper by Istvdn Feld: A 13. sz4-
zadi varak az eddigi kutatdsokban (Forts of the 13th century in research works
until now). Op. c:t. 8—21.

2 The sources of historical data concerning the fortress are specif‘ed in a public-
ation describing the explorations of 1977: Istvdn Feld—Juan Cabello: A fiizéri vér
(The fortress of Fiizér), Miskolc, 1980. In the following, a press-mark of the
source of the historical data will therefore be given only, if they are not included
in the above-cited work.

3 Hungarian National Archives, Collection from before Mohécs, DI1. 84148.

4 The full text of the inventories from 1620, 1644, 1665 and 1668 can be found in:
Istvdn Feld—Juan Cabello: A fiizéri vAar. Miskolc, 1980. 106—144. Archival press-
-mark of the inventory from 1670 unpublished so far: Hungarian National Archives,
Urbaria et conscriptiones. Fasc. 161.nr.1.

5 The present paper relies in several items one the results of their work. The
author wishes hereby to thank them for ther assistance and support.

6 The research work in the years 1992—1993 was of a smaller scale than that of
1977. Its results represented a progress mainly in a more accurate knowledge on
the ground-plan as well as in periodization. At the same time, the premises
mentioned in the inventor.es could be more exactly localized. As far as the finds
were concerned, the observations made in 1977 could be confirmed.
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The pottery has been already published earlier: Juan Cabello—Istvdn Feld: Jelen-
tés a fiizéri var 1977. évi kutatdsdr6l (Report on the researches in the fortress
of Fiizér in 1977). Archeolég.ai Ertesité 107. Budapest, 1980. 214—225., and partly
in: Istvdn Fe.d—]Juan Cabello: A fiizéri v4r, Miskolc, 1980.

Hungarian National Archives, Urbaria et conscriptiones, Fasc. 161.nr.1.

Istvdan Feid: A 15. sz4zadi castrum, mint kutatdsi probléma (The castrum of the
15th century, as a problem of research). In: Castrum Bene 2/1990. Ed.: Juan Cabel-
lo, Budapest, 1992. 13—29.

Medieval stove tiles in Slovakia. Exhibition in the Archeological Museum of Bra-
tislava. Michal Slivka—Adrian Vallasek: Hrady a hrddky na vychodnim Slovensku.
Kosice, 1991. 69, 223—227.

Elaboration of the stove tiles found within the research work of 1977: Anna
Gyuricza: Reneszansz kalyhacsempék Eszakkelet-Magyarorszdgon (Renaissance
stove tiles in North-Eastern Hungary). Miskolc, 1992.

Detailed descrip.ion of the object: Zoltdn Simon: Ismeretlen er6dités a fiizéri
Orhegyen (An unknown for on the Watch-hill of Filzér). In: Méemlékvédelmi,
Szemle, 1992/2, 25—31.
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